Collacombe/Heligan branch

First Generation

1 Peter /Perys TREMAYNE 2 John TREMAYNE
Lord of the Manor of Tremayne b abt 1242

St Martin in Meneage Cornwall
b abt 1240 married unknown abt 1273.
They had the following children:

i John Tremayne b abt 1275 Cornwall
ii Peter Tremayne b abt 1276 Cornwall

Second Generation

3 Henry TREMAYNE
b abt 1250

4 John Tremayne Lord of the Manor of Tremayne 1* son b abt 1275 married Margery Antron

abt 1300
They had the following children

i Agnes b abt 1303
ii Maude b abt 1304
iii James b abt 1305 married Marina (no issue)

iv Peter Lord of the Manor of Tremayne b abt 1307 marr 1* Elinor Canterbury (no issue)

2" Nichola Tregemynyon. Lineage continues.
v John b abt 1309 (no issue)

5 Peter/ Perys Tremayne 2" son b abt 1276
marr 1% Onera Trevarthian
They had the following child

1 Richard b abt 1300 >>>>> continues

marr 2™ Dame Opre Treskewys
They had the following child

i John b abt 1310 (no issue)



Third Generation

6 Richard Tremayne b abt 1300 marr Mary Erney/Ermy
They had the following children

i John b abt 1334 Sheriff of Cornwall 1399-1413 (the elder) no issue
ii Thomas b abt 1337 >>>>>>> continues

Fourth Generation

7 Thomas Tremayne b abt 1337 Lord of the Manor of Carwythenack Constantine,Cornwall in 1357.
This manor stayed in Tremayne hands until Edmund Tremayne of Collacombe, Devon in 1653 sold it to an
Anthony Chepman of Constantine, gent. For £850.

married Isabel daughter of Trenchard of Collacombe, Devon. She remarried Sir John Damarel and died
28 June 1408. Ing. p.m. 9 Hen 1V, no 43.

On marriage this branch of the family removes to Collacombe in Devon
They had the following children.

i Nicholas b abt 1360 >>>>>>>> continues
ii John b abt 1362 (the younger) marr Alice, Alderman & Recorder of London
1389-1392. Principle of Exeter College, Oxford 1428, Nominated for Mayor of London
iii Thomas b abt 1364 died 1420. Rector of Aveton Gifford, Devon.
v Richard (of Bodmin) b abt 1366, marr Isabella Heron. Rector of the Isle of Wight
v Agnes b abt 1368 marr William Coryton abt 1388
vi James b abt 1370 Presented to the living of Mary Tavy, Devon in 1409

Fifth Generation

8 Nicholas Tremayne of Collacombe, Devon Canon of St Peters, born abt 1360, son and heir.
Heir to his mother & aged 40yrs and more at her death in 1408 married Joan daughter of Sir J Dodscombe of

Doddiscombsleigh, Devon.
They had the following child.

i Thomas Tremayne b abt 1400 >>>>>>>



Sixth Generation

9 Thomas Tremayne of Collacombe b abt 1400. M.P. for Tavistock and South Molton temp Hen
6(1422-1461) son and heir, named in the Inq. taken on the death of his grandmother, died 1 Feb 1482. Inq. p.m.
21 Edw.1V, no 34. married Elizabeth daughter of Peter Carew, Baron Carew of Hacomb and Anthony.

Named in the Ing. taken on her husband’s death.

They had the following children:

i Joan b abt 1438 marr Sir Richard Edgcumbe of Cothele, Kt., Comptroller of the
household of Henry V11 from whom the present Lord Edgcumbe is a direct descent.
ii Elizabeth b abt 1440

ii Agnes b abt 1442

iv Catherine b abt 1444 marr Ralph Prye of Cornwall.
\ Jane b abt 1446 marr Oliver Kelly of Kelly.
vi John b abt 1448 >>>>>>>>

vii Christopher b abt 1450 >>>>>>>>

Seventh Generation

10 John Tremayne of Collacombe b abt 1448 son and heir, aged 30yrs and more at his father’s death,
by deed 27 Jan. 9 Hen. V11 (1494) settled the lands in Devon and Cornwall on the heirs of his son John,

d.31 Aug 1504.Inq.p.m. 19 Hen.V11, No.40.

married Jane daughter of Sir Francis Warre.

The Warre family residence was Hestercombe, Kingston St Mary, Taunton, Somerset from 1391-1872
They had the following children:

i John b abt 1470 >>>>>>>>
ii Richard b abt 1472 >>>>>>>>
il Maude b abt 1478 marr.......Upton of Trelaske
iv Margaret b abt 1480 marr Oliver Wyse/Le Wysa of Sydenham, Devon and
Greyston Manor, Lezant, Cornwall.
v Constance b abt 1482 marr Thomas Sawle

11 Christopher Tremayne b abt 1450. Had lands near Barnstable, Devon.
Ing. p.m. 20 Hen. V11,(1505) No 45. Married ?
They had the following children:

1 John b abt 1480 son and heir, aged 24yrs and more, of unsound mind and in the
charge of Roger Holland d. 29 Ap. 22 Hen. V11 Inq p.m. 22 Hen. V11.(1507).(no issue)
ii Peter b abt 1482 bur 10 Dec 1560 Sydenham Damerell, Devon. (no issue)
il Jane b abt 1485 bur 28 Mar 1556 Sydenham Damerell

iv Anne b abt 1487 bur 27 May 1555 Sydenham Damerell



Eighth Generation

12 John Tremayne of Carwythenack Manor, Constantine & Collacombe b abt 1470 marr
Emlyn daughter of John Bere of Huntsham, Nr Tiverton, Devon. The Bere family also had Trerovell in St
Ervan as early as 1284. Newlyn Nr Penzance was also connected to the family.

They had the following child:

i Thomas Tremayne b abt 1490 >>>>>>>>

N.B. a Master Nicholas Wyse was Vicar of Constantine 1497 a relative?

13 Richard Tremayne of Upcott, Nr Barnstable, Devon and Tregoddick, South
Petherwin, Cornwall.

b abt 1472 died 1556 at Tedburne St Mary, Devon marr Jane daughter of Oliver Wyse/Le Wysa of
Sydenham, Devon and Greyston Manor, Lezant, Cornwall widow of Edmund Devyocke. He made his Will in

favour of Sampson his fifth son (and youngest) and appointed him sole executor.
They had the following children:

T e marr a Merrifield
SV R marr a Polgrene
133 SR marr a Borlase
Vo marr a Leigh
\ Alice b abt 1515 marr Sampson Manaton
vi Oliver b abt 1520>>>>>>>>
vii Henry b abt 1522>>>>>>>>
viii Leonard b abt 1524 marr Margaret daughter of Fulk Prideaux of Theuborough,
Sutcombe, Nr Holsworthy, Devon widow of John Williams of Treworgy (no issue)
X John of Tregonan St Ewe, Cornwall b abt 1526 (no issue)

X Sampson b abt 1527 (5" son )>>>>>>



Ninth Generation

14 Thomas Tremayne of Collacombe and Tedburn Manor, Devon (Protestants)

b abt 1490 son and heir, aged 8yrs and more at his father’s death, bur. 16 Jan 1562-3 at Lamerton.

A monument to his memory is located at St Peter’s Lamerton. Named in the Will of his son Edmund as
deceased, married Phillipa eldest daughter of Roger Grenville of Stowe known as “The Great Housekeeper”
Phillipa Tremayne bur 2 Apr 1571 at Lamerton.

They had the following children:

i Katherine b abt 1520 marr John Harris of Lanrest 21 Oct 1548 Lamerton. Issue named in the

Will of her brother Digory.

i Bridget b abt 1522 marr Philip Dennis of Padstow, issue named in the Wills of her sister-in-
law Johanna and brother Digory

iii Jane b abt 1524 marr John Southcott 1 Sep 1561 Lamerton. Named in the Wills of her
brothers Edmund and Digory.

iv Mary b abt 1526 marr William Samuel of Shevyock, issue named in the Will of her
brother Digory.

v Margaret b abt 1528 marr Thomas Dennis of Creed, issue named in the Wills of her sister-in-
law Johanna and brother Digory.

vi  Roger  babt [530>>>>>>>>>
vii  Edmund b abt 1532>>>>>>>>>
viii  Digory b abt 1534 >>>>>>>>>
ix  Richard babt 1535 (twin of John ) Canon and Treasurer of Exeter Cathedral, Vicar of
Menheniot, named in the Wills of his brothers Roger and Edmund, buried 30 Nov 1584 at Lamerton. Married
Johanna daughter of Sir Peter Courtenay of Ugbrook 19 Sep 1569, Johanna bur 9 July 1595 at Chudleigh. Her
Will dated 14 April 1592 pro. 16 Aug 1595, P.C.C. (Scott 56)* see Will. Richard and his brother John were
named in the will of Amy Drake nee Grenville of Musbury, Devon. Widow, dated 8 Oct 1577 as her “cousins”.
no issue
x  John b abt 1535 died 1611 see Will dated 4™ April 1606 married Thomasine Coplestone
abt 1565.(possible issue see Will) Named in the Wills of his brothers Roger, Edmund and Digory.
xi  Nicholas b abt 1537 (twin of Andrew) Killed at the battle of Newhaven 1564 (no issue)
xii  Andrew b abt 1537 Killed at the battle of Newhaven 1564 (no issue)
xiii ~ Robert b abt 1538 died an infant.



15 Oliver Tremayne of Upcott, Devon. (Catholics) b abt 1520 died 1554 married?
They had the following children:

i

ii
iii
iv
\%
vi
vii
viii
X

Margery b abt 1540 marr 1* ... Trewolla of Trelevan Manor, Mevagissey 2™ Trevascus
Margaret b abt 1542 marr 1%....Coffin 2™ ... Duncalf

Philippa b abt 1543 marr William Tredinnick of Cardinham

Barbara b abt 1544 died unmarried

William of Trevere, Cornwall and Upcott, Devon b abt 1548>>>>>>>>

Sampson of Dorchester, Dorset b abt 1550>>>>>>>>

Thomas b abt 1551 d.s.p. (no issue) died 12 Aug 1599 Rome, Italy.

George b abt 1551 d.s.p. (no issue)

Richard b abt 1552.>>>>>>>>>>

John of Tregenza, Morwenstow b abt 1554>>>>>>>>

16 Henry Tremayne of Bodrugan, Cornwall (Catholics) b abt 1522 marr Mary daughter of
Humphry Prideaux of Theuborough, Sutcombe, Devon 24 Jan 1546 Landulph, Nr Saltash, Cornwall.

(Mary Isham)

They had the following children

i
ii
iii
v

A\

Phillip

b abt 1550 d.s.p.was at Douai College in 1585 (no issue)

Catherine b abt 1551 a Nun at St Ursula’s Convent Louvain died 1603

Jane

b abt 1552

Margaret b abt 1553 a Nun at St Ursula’s Convent Louvain went to St Monica’s Convent
Louvain where she died 1624
Richard of Tregonan St Ewe b abt 1554>>>>>>>>

17 Sampson Tremayne (Catholics) b abt 1527, died 20 April 1593 at Trelissick, St Ewe, Cornwall.
Purchased a tenement in Hillygon, & c of Richard Grenville of Penheale married Margaret daughter and
heiress of Thomas Downing of Tredowne, Chittlehampton, Nr Barnstable, Devon.

They had the following children

i
il
iii
v
%

Cherita
Jane
Agnes
Richard
Anne

b abt 1550 marr John Rowe als Maye 29 Jan 1569/70 St Ewe

b abt 1552 marr George Willoughby of St Enoder

b abt 1554 marr Thomas Richard 24 Jan 1568/9 St Ewe

b abt 1556 marr Beaton daughter of ....Carlyon. Beaton bur 15 Aug 1613 St Ewe.
b abt 1557 a Nun at St Ursula’s Convent Louvain, Professed there 20 May 1601.

Sent to the Bruges Foundation died there 16 Sept 1639
William b abt 1558 >>>>>>>>>>

vi



Tenth Generation

18 Roger Tremayne of Collacombe 1% son b abt 1530 d. 28 Feb bur.13 Mar 1571-2 at Lamerton.
Will 6 July 1569, pro 24 Mar 1572-3, Collated Wills, Exeter, married Ann daughter of Richard Coffin of
Porthledge, Bideford, Devon 1 Feb 1550-1 at Lamerton, named in her husband’s Will, remarried John Smith of
Duloe.

They had the following children:

i Wilmot bap 13 June 1549 at Lamerton marr Thomas Smith of Tregonake in St Germans.
ii John b abt 1551 bur 23 July 1553 at Lamerton.(no issue)
il Philippa bap 14 May 1555 Alwington marr Hannibal Vyvyan 20 Jan 1573-4
iv Mary  bap 18 Sep 1562 Lamerton, named in the Will of her uncle Edmund Tremayne.
\% Dionis b abt 1564. Named in the Will of her uncle Edmund Tremayne. * SeeWill

19 Edmund Tremayne 2™ son b abt 1532 Clerk of the Privy Council temp. Eliz., d s.p.m.s. bur 20 Sep
1582 at Lamerton, exr of the Will of his brother Roger. Will 17 Sep. pro. 3 Dec 1582, P.C.C. (Tirwhytt 45)
married Ulalia daughter of Sir John St. Leger Kt of Annery, Monkleigh, Devon 26 Sep 1576 at Lamerton,
named in her husband’s Will.

They had the following children:

i Elizabeth bap 3 Dec 1577 Lamerton, named in the Wills of her father and uncle Digory, living
1600, married John Gifford 6 Feb 1602 Monkleigh, Devon.
ii Francis  bap & bur 18 Sep 1580 at Lamerton.
il Francis  bap 20 Apr 1582 at Lamerton, named in fathers Will, bur 6 Nov 1582 at Lamerton.

v Phillipa posthumous child, named in the Will of her uncle Digory, living 1600.

20 DigoryTremayne of Collacombe 3™ son b abt 1534 bur 22 Apr 1601 at Lamerton, named in the
Will of his brother Roger. Will 13 May 1600, published 4 Apr 1601 pro 6 May 1601, P.C.C. ( Woodhall 35)
married 1st Elizabeth daughter of Thomas Vacy of Tamerton, widow of Richard Browning of Morwenstow
31 Dec 1551 at Kilhampton, married 2" Katherine daughter of Sir Peter Courtenay of Ugbrooke and widow of
John Ley alias Kempthorne of Tonacombe, Morwenstow 12 Jan 1595, named in her husband’s Will, living
1600.

Children by 1* wife Elizabeth were:

1 Arthur bap 4 April 1553 at Kilhampton>>>>>>>>>>
i Lewis bap 10 Mar 1555-6 bur 9 Apr 1556 at Kilhampton.

Child by 2™ wife Katherine

1 Arthur bap 25 May 1595 Morwenstow

21 William Tremayne of Trevere, Cornwall and Upcott, Devon b abt 1548. Died 1576 admon.
granted 8 Aug 1576 to Thomas Roscarrock during minority of the daughters, Act Book, P.C.C. married Jane
daughter of Richard Roscarrock remarried Humphry Nicholl of Penvose, Cornwall.

Richard Roscarrock resided at Tregidgeo in Creed, Cornwall.

They had the following children:

i Elizabeth a minor 1576 marr John Dinham of Wortham
ii ~ Ursula a minor 1576 marr William Treffry of Place 3 April 1589 Fowey.



22 Sampson Tremayne of Dorchester, Dorset b abt 1550 marr 1¥ Ann daughter of Martin
Trestrayne 16 Feb 1575/6 St Ewe. The Trestrayne family resided at Ruan Lanihorne
They had the following children:

i Philip b abt 1578
i1 Oliver b abt 1580>>>>>>>>

Married 2nd Helen abt 1590

i John b 1592 Dorset became a Jesuit and died at the English College, Rome, Italy 8 Aug 1615

23 Richard Tremayne b abt 1552 married Elizabeth daughter of ....Garth 20 Jan 1576/7 St Ewe
Axminster Manor, Devon 1602 Richard Tremayne esq understeward to John Bydgood gent.

A Edward Garth was the Clerk of the Kings Majesty Court. Henry VIII in 1552 Elizabeth’s relative?
They had the following children:

i John of Creed b abt 1578 died 1611 see letters of admin
it George of Padstow b abt 1579 named admin of his brother John’s 1611 Letters of admin
iii  Richard of Grampound b abt 1580>>>>>>>>

24 John Tremayne of Tregenza, Morwenstow Cornwall. b abt 1554 married Jane?
They had the following children:

i John b abt 1578 marr Elizabeth Carnarthur abt 1598 daughter and heiress of John
Carnarthur who was appointed attorney on the 6 June 1567 for the borough of Grampound.
She later remarried George Boscawen on the death of her husband abt 1600(no issue)
ii  Priscilla b abt 1580 marr .....Geake
iii ~ Jone b abt 1584 marr Edward Cleere 7 Nov 1627 St Ewe.

25 Richard Tremayne of Tregonan St Ewe Cornwall which was left to him by his uncle John was
born abt 1554. Will dated 30 Sept 1609, pro 26 Sept 1610, Consist. Ct Exeter. Married Johanna daughter of
Richard Coffyn 12 Sept 1574 at Alwington, Nr Bideford, Devon.

They had the following child:

i Mary b abt 1576 married Thomas Henslow, their children named in her father’s Will.
Tregonan settled on SampsonTremayne

26 William Tremayne b abt 1558, son and heir, built HELIGAN St Ewe Cornwall and resided there in
1604, bur 16 Feb 1614-5 at St Ewe, marr Ann daughter and heiress of John Pye of Lanzearth in St Stephens in
Brannel 13 Aug 1579 at St Ewe.
They had the following children:

i Anne bap 30 Mar 1583 marr Thomas Edwards 11 Nov 1605 at St Ewe.
it Elizabeth died 1587
iii  Elizabeth died 1590
iv  Perrelle bap 25 Mar 1596 marr 26 Nov 1628 James Donstone St Ewe
v Judith bap 6 Apr 1592 at St Ewe died 1619.
vi  Margaret bap 10 Jan 1594-5 at St Ewe died 1669.
vii  Agnes died 1604.
viii Sampson b 21 May 1581 St Ewe died infant.
ix  John bap 3 May 1584 St Ewe died 1586.
X Oliver bap 4 May 1585 St Ewe.
xi Thomas b abt 1589 (No issue)
xii John born 1590>>>>>>>>>>
xiii ~ William bap 18 Oct 1596 at St Ewe died 1608.



Eleventh Generation

27 Arthur Tremayne of Collacombe son and heir bap 4 Apr 1553 at Kilhampton, named in his
father’s Will, aged 70yrs 1620, bur 4 Feb 1634-5 at Lamerton. Will 27 June 1629, pro 22 Aug 1635, P.C.C.
(Sadler 86) marr Mary daughter of Sir Richard Grenville of Stowe 2 June 1586 at Kilhampton, bur 25 Mar
1608 at Lamerton.

Sir Richard Grenville founded the colony of Roanoke Island, Virginia in 1585 and died in a sea fight
against the Spanish off the Azores in his ship the Revenge in 1591.
They had the following children:

i Edmund bap 17 Oct 1587 at Bideford>>>>>>>>>>>
it Digory  bap 22 Jan 1588/9>>>>>>>>>>>
il Katherine b abt 1588 marr Roger Edgcumbe 26 July 1627 Lamerton.
iv Rebecca b abt 1590 marr John Edgcumbe 21 Jan 1635-6 Lamerton. Named in her

father’s Will.
v Elizabeth b abt 1592 marr Baldwin Ackland of Hawkridge Barton, Chittlehampton,
Devon 24 Aug 1615 at Lamerton.
vi John  bap 27 Sept 1592 bur 17 May 1594 at Lamerton
vii Ulalia  bap 14 Oct 1593 Sydenham Damerell marr Thomas Lower of Trelaske 22 Oct
1613 at Lamerton.
viii John  bap 20 Jun 1596 Lamerton, named in the Wills of his grandfather Tremayne
and his father, living 1629. Killed in Bohemia.
X Bridget bap 4 Dec 1597 marr Bernard Flamank of Boscarne 20 Apr 1636 at Lamerton.
Named in her father’s Will.
X Mary bap 14 Jan 1598-9 bur 7 Sep 1602 at Lamerton.
xi Richard bap 1 Jun 1600 Lamerton, aged 19yrs 1620, named in his father’s Will. Living
1629
xii Arthur b abt 1600. Named in the Will of his grandfather Tremayne, living 1600
xiii Mary bap 4 Sep 1603 Lamerton.
Xiv Roger b abt 1603 aged 17yrs 1620, named in his father’s Will, living 1629 bur 5 Jan
1676/7 Lamerton
XV Margaret bap 18 Nov 1604 Lamerton. Named in her father’s Will.
Xvi Philadelphia bap 1, bur 8 June 1606 Lamerton.

28 Oliver Tremayne b abt 1580 upon whom TREGONAN was entailed. Named in the Will of his cousin
Richard Tremayne, living 1609, died 1649 marr Jenefer daughter of .....Coffyn
They had the following children:

i John b abt 1602>>>>>>>>>>>
ii  Mary b abt 1608 died 1652
iii  Elizabeth b abt 1612 bur 1612/3 Lawhitton
iv.  Amy bap 6 Apr 1613 Lawhitton bur 26 Jun 1613 St Ewe

29 Richard Tremayne of Grampound Cornwall b abt 1580 marr Elizabeth daughter of John

Lamanver Budock,gent
They had the following child

i Richard b abt 1615 lived at Gwennap >>>>>>>>>>>



30 John Tremayne of Heligan 5" son born 1590 died 25 Jul 1665 (suffered for his loyalty to Charles
Ist ) married 22 Nov 1618 Mevagissey to Jane daughter and heiress of Lewis Wallis als Darte of Pentewan,
formerly of Barnstable, Devon. Married 2nd Ann Tanner 13 Aug 1657 of Court Manor House, St Stephen-in-
Brannel.

* N.B. A Phillip Wallis als Darte was in Bohemia at the same time as John Tremayne the son of Arthur
Tremayne of Collacombe was killed there. Coincidence?

Children by 1* wife Jane Wallis als Darte

i Lewis chr 1 Sep 1619 Mevagissey>>>>>>>>>>
ii Elizabeth chr 8 Oct 1620 named in the Will of her brother Lewis Tremayne as unmarried
later married Mathias Von Bekeel
il Philip b abt 1622>>>>>>>>>
iv Mary b 1622, named in the Will of her brother Lewis Tremayne as unmarried 1684
later marr Dennis Mccarther of Cork
v Amy b 1623 marr 1¥ John Robyns, 2™ Hugh Coga of Trudgeon.
vi Frances b 1625
vii Anne b 1628 marr Edward Maunder of Nansladron.
viii Jane b 1632 marr Jacob Robyns of Tregenowe, Veryan.
ix Martha b 1633 marr John Williams of Gorran 20 Jan 1669-70 St Ewe.
X John b abt 1635 died 1673(no issue)

Child by 2" wife Ann Tanner

1 Robert died an infant 1658

n



Twelfth Generation

31 Edmund Tremayne of Collacombe 1st son and heir, bap 17 Oct 1587 at Bideford marr Bridget
daughter of Sir John Cooper of Trutwell,Co Dorset 26 May 1615 Exeter. Bridget bur 17 Sep 1670 at Lamerton.
Edmund named in the Will of his grandfather, and exr. of his father’s Will. Edmund bur 1664 at Lamerton.
Edmund Tremayne sold Carwythenack Manor, Constantine, Cornwall in 1653 for
£850

They had the following children:

i Mary bap 5 Nov 1616, bur 2 Dec 1617 at Lamerton.

ii Thomas bap 28 Nov 1617 bur 18 Feb 1641/2 Lamerton (no issue)
il John bap 2 April 1620 bur 9 Oct 1621 Lamerton (no issue)

iv Martha  bap 19 Jan 1623-4, bur 30 Jan 1687-8 at Lamerton.

v John bap 13 Aug 1622 d.s.p., bur 16 Sep 1658 at Lamerton marr Elizabeth daughter
of John Courtenay of West Molland, remarried John Connock of Treworgy. Will 23 Sep 1685, pro. 30 Jul
1687, Prin. Reg. Exeter.(no issue)

vi Edmund bap 12 Nov 1625 Lamerton died 1667 (no issue)

vii  Arthur  bap 10 Sep 1627>>>>>>>>>>>

32 Digory Tremayne of Poundstock Cornwall bap 22 Jan 1588/9 named in the Wills of his
grandfather and father, bur 22 Mar 1669/70 Lamerton, marr 1* Mary daughter of William Addington of
Bideford 9 Dec 1613 at Lamerton bur 23 Oct at Poundstock

marr 2™ Elinor daughter of Anthony Monk 18 Oct 1628 at Kilhampton (no issue)

Children by Mary were:

i Grenville bap 2 Oct 1614 Lamerton, aged Syrs 1620
it Arthur b abt 1617, aged 3yrs 1620

33 John Tremayne b abt 1602 married Sibella daughter of ? Sold Tregonan
They had the following child:

i John b abt 1625. Secretary to the Earl of Bath died 1665Lived in London(no issue)

34 Richard Tremayne of Gwennap Cornwall b abt 1615 married?
They had the following child:

i Richard b abt 1640 Gwennap

11



35 Colonel Lewis Tremayne of Heligan chr 1 Sep 1619 Mevagissey,died 1685 Col in the Royal
Army, commanded a Regt.of foot for the King, Lieut. Governor of St Mawes Castle. Will 7 Nov 1684 pro. 3
May 1686, Archd. Ct. Cornwall, marr Mary (b1625 d1701) daughter and co-heiress of John Carew of
Penwarne. This John Carew was styled the “ One handed” from having lost his right hand at the siege of
Ostend in 1601. He afterwards settled as a Merchant in Mevagissey.

They had the following children:

i Mary b abt 1645 marr William Williams of Treworgy 12 Dec 1681 Probus,
named in her father’s Will, living 1684.
it~ Honor b abt 1646 died before 1684.

iii  John  bap 16 Sep 1647 Mevagissey>>>>>>>>>>>>
iv. Lewis bap 11 Jun 1650 Mevagissey, named in his father’s Will. Lost at sea.(no issue)
v Charles b 1650>>>>>>5>>>5>>>,
vi  Richard b abt 1651 died 1675.(no issue)
vii  George bap 2 May 1654 Mevagissey,died 1680. (no issue)
viii ~ Sampson bap 5 Aug 1655 Mevagissey,died 1671. (no issue)
ix  Oliver bap 9 Jun1659 Mevagissey, died 1687.(no issue)

36 Capt PhilipTremayne b abt 1622 marr Mary daughter of Christopher Worthivall of Worthivall 4 Jun
1667 at Probus, named in the Will of his brother Lewis living 1684.Capt in his brothers Regt.
They had the following child;

i Philip bap 13 Jul 1668 Probus.

1



Thirteenth Generation

37 Colonel Arthur Tremayne of Collacombe bap 10 Sep 1627 at Sydenham Damerell, a Colonel in
the Royal Army, bur 20 Oct 1710 at Lamerton, marr Bridget daughter of Nicholas Hatherleigh of Lamerton abt
1648. Bridget bur 12 Oct 1659 at Lamerton.

They had the following children:

i Edmund  bap 14 Apr 1649 >>>>>>>>>>>>
ii Arthur bap 17 Mar 1649-50, bur 2 May 1650 Lamerton.
il Arthur bap 27 Apr 1652 Lamerton (no issue)

38 Sir John Tremayne 1* son bap 16 Sep1647 Mevagissey,died 1694 Sergeant at Law, M.P. for
Tregony, named in his father’s Will, living 1684, marr Frances daughter of William and sister of Sir William
Davie of Creedy Park, Sandford, Devon.

Marriage settlement dated 10 April 1680.Frances died 1682 in childbirth.

They had the following child:

1 John b abt 1682 died 1682.

39 The Revd. Charles Tremayne of Heligan 3™ son b 1650 d 1695, Vicar of St Austell, Rector of
Lansallos, named in his father’s Will, marr 1685 Elizabeth daughter of John Jago of Truthan, St Erme.
Elizabeth remarried Stephen Hewgoe and died 1725.

They had the following children:

i Lewis b 1687>>>>>>>>>>>>>
it John bap 7 Feb 1688 a Lt Col in Clotworthys Regt, died Ireland 1719.(no issue)
iii ~ Charles bap 1 Apr 1690 died 1718.(no issue)

12



Fourteenth Generation

40 Edmund Tremayne of Sydenham, Devon son and heir, bap 14 apr 1649, bur 20 Oct 1698 at
Lamerton marr Arabella daughter and heiress of Sir Edward Wise, K.B. of Sydenham 20 June 1673 St

Sidwells, Exeter.

Arabella bur 12 Feb 1696-7 at Lamerton.

They had the following children:

i
il
iii
v
%

Arthur  bap 3 Dec 1678>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>

Arabella bap 27 Apr 1681 Lamerton marr John Harris of Manadon 18 Dec 1704 Maristowe.

Bridget bap 21 Oct 1684 Lamerton, marr William Bickford 12 Nov 1707 Maristowe.
Edward Wise Tremayne bap 7 Aug 1688 Lamerton (no issue)
Mary bap 8, bur 30 Apr 1690 Lamerton.

41 Lewis Tremayne of Heligan b 1687 marr Mary daughter and co-heiress of John Clotworthy of
Rashleigh and Clotworthy, Devon. Mary b1678 Died 1720.
They had the following children:

i John b 1709>>>>>>>>>>>>
ii Charles b abt 1710 died 1714.

11



Fifteenth Generation

42 Arthur Tremayne of Sydenham son and heir, bap 3 Dec 1678, bur 29 Mar 1709 at Lamerton.
Sheriff of Devon 1700-1 marr Anne daughter of Sir Halswell Tynte of Halswell, Nr Bridgwater,Somerset who
was the Sheriff of Somerset and M. P. for Bridgwater. Anne Tremayne bur 19 Mar 1711-2 at Lamerton.
They had the following child:

i Arthur of Sydenham, b 23 Feb 1700 >>>>>>>>>>

43 John Tremayne of Heligan b 1709 d 1756 Sheriff of Cornwall 1746, marr Grace daughter and co-
heiress of Henry Hawkins of St Austell 4 Sep 1735 St Austell. .
They had the following children:

i Lewis b 1738 died 1738.
ii  Lewis b 1739 died s.p. 1766 (no issue).
iii  Mary b1738 died 1745.
vi  Henry Hawkins Tremayne b 1741>>>>>>>>>>
v Barbara b abt 1743 died infant.
vi  Grace b 1744 marr 1 Jul 1776 Charles Rashleigh of Duporth, St Austell. Grace died 1820

Sixteenth Generation

44 Arthur Tremayne of Sydenham b 23 Feb 1700 bap 6 Mar 1700-1 at Maristowe. Sheriff of Devon

1739. M.P. for Launceston, died 1794 marr Dorothy daughter of ..... Hammond, Rector of Maiden
Bradley, Wiltshire. Dorothy bur 11 Mar 1750 at Lamerton.

Collacombe now mentioned as a house in ruins

They had the following child:

i Arthur of Sydenham, bap 11 Aug 1735 at Maristowe died unmarried Dec 1808 at
Sydenham, bur 3 Jan 1809 at Lamerton.

Being the last of the this branch of the family, he bequeathed Sydenham and Croan
Estate Nr Wadebridge, Cornwall to his kinsman the Rev. Henry Hawkins Tremayne of
Heligan, Cornwall

45 The Revd Henry Hawkins Tremayne of Heligan 3" son b 1741 died 1829 married Harriet
daughter and co-heiress of John Hearle of Penryn, Vice-Warden of the Stannaries, Harriet died 1805.
They had the following child:

i John Hearle Tremayne b 1780 >>>>>>>>>>>
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Seventeenth Generation

46 John Hearle Tremayne of Heligan and Sydenham, b 1780 died 27 Aug 1851at Dawlish,
Devon. M.P. for Cornwall 1806-25, Sheriff of Cornwall 1831, marr Caroline Matilda daughter of Sir William
Lemon, Bart. of Carclew 1813. Caroline died 1864. St George, Hanover Sq, dist, London.

They had the following children:

1 Henry William b 1814 died 1823.
il Arthur John b 1817 died 1818.

iii John b 1819 died an infant.
iv Harriet Jane b 1821 marr 25 Jan 1842 Sir John Salusbury Trelawny at St Ewe.
v Mary b 1823 marr 13 Feb 1851 The Hon. and Rev. John Townsend
Boscawen, Rector of Lamorran.
vi John b 1825>>>>>>5555>>>>>
vii Arthur bap 18 Jun 1827>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
viii Henry Hawkins Tremayne b 1830>>>>>>>>

X Caroline b 4 Oct 1833 died 1842.
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Eighteenth Generation

47 John Tremayne of Heligan and Sydenham 4th son b 1825 died 7 Apr 1901.M.P. for Cornwall,
marr The Hon. Mary Charlotte Martha eldest daughter of Charles Crespigny, 2" Baron Vivian of Glynn 13
Nov 1860.

They had the following children:

1 Onera Mary Georgiana b 1861.
ii  Harriet Maud b 1863.
iii  Grace Damaris Matilda b 1864 marr Charles Hagart Babington 29 April 1889.

They had the following child;
i John Babington b 1891. Assumed Tremayne surname in 1945 and inherited Heligan.

iv  John Claude Lewis Tremayne b 1 Aug 1869 died 27 Mar 1949 married 18 Nov 1897 Eleanor
Elizabeth Rashleigh. (no issue). In his Will John bequeathed Heligan to his nephew John Babington.

48 Col Arthur Tremayne of Carclew,5" son born 15 May 1827 bap 18 Jun 1827 died 14 Nov 1903
aged 78yrs. Lieut- Col. H.p., succeeded his maternal uncle Sir William Lemon, Bart. at Carclew 1869, marr 1%
Lady Frances Hely-Hutchinson 2nd daughter of Richard John 3™ Earl of Donoughmore 22 Sep 1858. Lady
Frances died 11 Apr 1866, marr 2" Emma Penelope daughter of the Rev. Thomas Phillpotts of Porthwidden 15
Sep 1870.

Children by Lady Frances Hely-Hutchinson are:

i Caroline Mary b 5 Jul 1860 marr Francis Alexander 31 Jan 1883.
ii Arthur Richard b 17 Sep 1861 Dublin died 13 Jun 1862 buried at Kensal Green, London
il William Francis b 25 Oct 1862>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
iv Charles Lewis b 14 Feb 1864 died 25 Feb 1870 at Slough.
v John Hearle Tremayne b 11 Mar 1865 marr 1904 at Maidenhead to Faith Margaret Adam.

daughter Frances Margaret Tremayne b 1905 Maidenhead, Berks. Lineage continues?

Children by Emma Phillpotts are:

i Arthur Hughes Tremayne b 19 Oct 1872 (lineage continues?)
ii Alice Opre b 10 Feb 1875 marr Norman Maclagan 12 Jun 1900

49 Henry Hawkins Tremayne of Plymouth 6" son b 1830 d 1894 marr Charlotte Jane 3™ daughter
of John Buller of Morval 9 Sep 1858. Charlotte died 1909 Liskeard dist.
They had the following children:

i Agatha Charlotte b 19 Sep 1860 died 16 Nov 1876.
il Florence Harriet b 27 Oct 1862 at Madron, marr 12 Jan 1910 Col. Charles M. Sumner
iii ~ Mabel Frances b 3 Jan 1864.
iv Helen Mary b 15 Feb 1865.
v Major Henry Arthur Tremayne 16/Bengal Lancers b 20 May 1866 died 17 Jan 1921 marr Miss
Vawden abt 1896. They had the following child Jane Vawden Tremayne b abt 1897 died 1932
vi Arthur Hearle Tremayne b 29 Sep 1868. (Lineage continues?)
vii Margaret Olivia b 1871 died 1911 St George, Hanover Sq dist London.
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Nineteenth Generation

50 Capt William Francis Tremayne of Carclew b 25 Oct 1862 died 1930 marr 19" August 1890
Zoe de Robeck daughter of the 4™ Baron de Robeck of Gowran Grange, Naas, Nr Punchestown, County
Kildare, Ireland. The Baron was the Deputy Lieutenant & J.P. for County Kildare Ireland. For many years he
served as the Queens Ranger (c1880) at the Curragh. Now famous as the H.Q. of Irish horse racing.

They had the following children;

1 Ursula Frances Rose b 18 July 1891 marr 1* Eustace Blois 2" Richard Guinness
il Capt Charles Henry b 22 Sept 1893>>>>>5555555>>>>>>>
il John William Lemon b abt 1895 Sub-Lieut R.N. HMS Tarantula.
Died China 14 Feb 1923 buried Hong Kong Cemetery, Happy Valley, Hong Kong.(no issue)
iv Edmund Kildare Tremayne b abt 1897 Naas, Kildare Ireland. Lineage continues?

v Bridgitte Eblana Harriet b abt 1900

Twentieth Generation

51 Capt Charles Henry Tremayne of Carclew 1* son b 22 Sept 1893 marr Joan Kathleen Hepper

2" April 1923 the eldest daughter of Sir Lawless Hepper.

Heppers key electric key transmitters was invented by Major (later Sir Lawless) Hepper, Signal Engineer,

Ex North Western Railways to replace key interlocking by hand, he eventually became the General Manager of

the Ex Great Indian Peninsular Railway.

Carclew, Mylor, Cornwall destroyed my fire in 1934 family removes to
Easton Grey, Wiltshire

They had the following children:

1 David Charles born 1925
i1 Caroline Sara born 1928
iii John born abt 1936 married abt 1975 >>>>>
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Twenty-First Generation

52 John Tremayne b abt 1936 married?
They had the following child

i  Michael W. b abt 1976

Twenty-Second Generation

53 Michael W. Tremayne b abt 1976 married Rosanna Birkbeck abt 2003
They had the following children

i Emily born 2004
ii  Benjamin William born 2006
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1841-1901 CENSUS

1841 CENSUS St Ewe, Cornwall
Heligan
No Tremaynes in residence only servants.

1851 CENSUS St Ewe

Heligan Mansion

TREMAYNE John Hearle  Head of household  71yrs

Occupying a farm of abt 250 acres employing 15 labs on farm 26 on other works.

TREMAYNE Caroline Matilda Wife 62yrs

Plus servants.

1861 CENSUS St Ewe

Heligan

No Tremaynes in residence only servants.

1861 CENSUS Mylor, Cornwall

Carclew

No Tremaynes in residence only servants.

1871 CENSUS St Ewe

Heligan

TREMAYNE John Head of household 45yrs b1826 St Martin in the field,
Occupation Magistrate. London
TREMAYNE  Mary Charlotte Wife 28yrs

TREMAYNE  Onera Mary dau Oyrs

TREMAYNE  Harriet Maude dau Tyrs

TREMAYNE  Grace Damaris dau 6yrs

TREMAYNE  John Claude son lyr.

1871 CENSUS Padstow, Cornwall.

Place

TREMAYNE Arthur Visitor 43yrs b1828 St Martin in the field,
Occupation High Sheriff. London
TREMAYNE Emma Visitor 28yrs

TREMAYNE Caroline M. Visitor 10yrs

Head of household was a Charles BRUNE a 50yr old Magistrate

1871 CENSUS Mylor

Carclew

TREMAYNE
TREMAYNE
TREMAYNE

1871 CENSUS Morval, Cornwall.
Morval House.

TREMAYNE
TREMAYNE
TREMAYNE
TREMAYNE
TREMAYNE
TREMAYNE
TREMAYNE

William Francis

Charles Lewis
John Hearle

Agatha

Florence Harriet

Mabel Frances
Helen Mary
Henry Arthur
Arthur Hearle

Margaret Olivia
(Children of Henry Hawkins Tremayne b1830 living at the Buller family household with 19 servants)

son
son
son

visitor
visitor
visitor
visitor
visitor
visitor
visitor

8yrs
Tyrs
6yrs

10yrs
8yrs
Tyrs
6yrs
4yrs
2yrs
6mths

born Florence, Italy.
born London

born London.
(Children of Arthur Tremayne b 1828 at home with 15 servants)

born
born
born
born
born
born
born

St Georges, London
Madron, Cornwall.
Littleham, Devon.
Littleham, Devon.
Littleham, Devon.
Withycombe, Devon.
Withycombe, Devon



1881 CENSUS St Ewe
Heligan
Tremayne family not in residence only servants.

1881 CENSUS Mylor

Carclew

TREMAYNE Arthur 53yrs
Occupation Lieut Col Cavalry (Rtd)

TREMAYNE Emma wife 38yrs
TREMAYNE Arthur Hughes  son 8yrs
TREMAYNE Alice Opre dau 6yrs
Plus 16 servants.

1881 CENSUS Plymouth St Andrew, Devon.

TREMAYNE Henry Hawkins Slyrs

Occupation Bank Manager, Bank of England.

born London.

born 1830 London.

Address Bank of England branch manor house, St Andrew, Plymouth.
Also employed Mary Rapson aged 19yrs kitchenmaid. Mary Evens aged 18yrs housemaid

1881 CENSUS Winchester, Hampshire
TREMAYNE John Claude

Boarder/ Scholar Winton House, Winchester
(Son of John Tremayne b 1826)

11yrs

1881 CENSUS Eton, Buckinghamshire.
TREMAYNE John Hearle
Boarder/Scholar Eton College, Keats Lane.
(Son of Arthur Tremayne b 1828)

16yrs

1881 CENSUS Exeter St David, Devon
TREMAYNE William Francis
Occupation Lieut 1* Devon Militia.
Boarding at 6 Northernhay Place, Exeter.
(Son of Arthur Tremayne b 1828)

18yrs

1881 CENSUS Datchet, Buckinghamshire.
TREMAYNE Arthur Hearle
Boarder/ Scholar Sunbury House, Eton.

( Son of Henry Hawkins Tremayne b 1830)

12yrs

1881 CENSUS Sandhurst, Berkshire,
TREMAYNE Henry Arthur
Boarder/ Scholar Wellington College.

( Son of Henry Hawkins Tremayne b 1830)

14yrs

1881 CENSUS London

18 New Cavendish Street

TREMAYNE Grace Damaris
TREMAYNE Harriet Maude
TREMAYNE Onera Mary Georgiana
(daughters of John Tremayne b1826)

16yrs
18yrs
19yrs

1891 CENSUS Mylor

Carclew

TREMAYNE Arthur 63yrs
Occupation Lt Col Retired also Justice of the Peace.
TREMAYNE Emma wife 48yrs
TREMAYNE Arthur Hughes son 18 yrs
TREMAYNE Alice O dau 16yrs
TREMAYNE Florence H. niece  28yrs
TREMAYNE Helen M niece 26 yrs
Plus servants

born 1870 London

born 1865 London.

born 1862 British Subject Italy.

born 1869 Exmouth, Devon.

born 1867 Exmouth, Devon.

Scholar
Scholar
Scholar

born 1828 St Martin in the fields

born Mylor
born Mylor
born Madron
born Exmouth.
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1891 CENSUS St Ewe
Heligan
Tremayne family not in residence only servants.

1901 CENSUS Mylor

Carclew

TREMAYNE Arthur T3yrs born 1828 St Martin in the fields
Occupation Lieut Colonel Retired

TREMAYNE Emma wife 58yrs

TREMAYNE Arthur Hughes 27yrs born Mylor

1901 CENSUS Devonport, Devon.

TREMAYNE John Claude 3lyrs born London
Occupation Captain of Infantry. Army Officer. North Raglan Barracks

( Son of John Tremayne b 1826)

1901 CENSUS Vessels

Off Wusang

Royal Navy

TREMAYNE Arthur Hearle 32yrs born Exmouth
Occupation Lieutenant.

(Son of Henry Hawkins Tremayne b 1830)

1901 CENSUS Morval

TREMAYNE Charlotte J. 75yrs born Morval
TREMAYNE Florence H. 38yrs born Madron.
TREMAYNE Mabel F. 37yrs born Exmouth.

(Wife and daughters of Henry Hawkins Tremayne b 1830)

1901 CENSUS Exeter
TREMAYNE Helen M. 36yrs born Exmouth.
(Daughter of Henry Hawkins Tremayne b 1830)

1901 CENSUS St Margaret and St John the Evangelist, Westminster, London.
TREMAYNE Margaret O. 30yrs born Exmouth.
(Daughter of Henry Hawkins Tremayne b 1830)

1901 CENSUS St George, Hanover Square.

TREMAYNE Zoe visitor 32yrs  born Naas, Kildare, Ireland.

Wife of Capt William Francis Tremayne only Tremayne in residence plus servants

1897 County Directory
TREMAYNE H. A. (Henry Arthur) Lt Army The Barracks Bodmin
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TREMAYNE of TREMAYNE St Martin in Meneage, Cornwall

Collacombe, Devon,
Sydenham, Devon,
Heligan St Ewe, Cornwall.
Carclew, Mylor, Cornwall

G. 3 dexter arms conjoined at the shoulders and flexed in triangle O fists.

Quartering Erney/Ermy,

Trenchard, Dodscombe,

Hatherleigh, Wise .S. 3 chev:ermine.,

Downing. Argent across S., Pye. Ariona...A3 3 escallops Ar.,

Dart, Roscarrock, Hearle,
Clotworthy.Ar:achev.erm ..... .. Rashleigh,
Scobell, Hawkins, Paynter,

Carew.

The coat of Erney/Ermy was borne by the Tremaynes as their paternal one till the time of Henry 7‘h.( 1485-

1509) John Tremaine of Collacombe being the last who so wore it. Afterwards it was in the first quartering.

ERNEY/ERMY of Trewothgan
Sir Thomas Erney of Trewothgan =
I
Mary heiress ux Richard Tremain who adopted her arms instead of
Quartering them.

Sydenham of Sydenham suc temp H3 (1216-1272) by Marrais.

Dodscombe of Doddiscombe Legh. Heiress married Nich. Tremaine.

Purpure 3 eaglets displayed Ar.

One branch ended temp E3 (1327-1377) heiress married ...bury Newenham
Pratt .... Branscomb.

TRENCHARD of Collacomb according to family record.
O. ...cher,bet3.... .... G. on 3 plates O. .....

=Henry de Trenchard of Lewe which Sir John Mulgrave gave him
temp H3.(1216-1272)
His name is in a Jury list of that reign.
I
= Sir Michael Trenchard of Collacomb temp E1.(1272-1307)
One of the great assize between the Abbots of St Michaels
and Newenham. He gave land in Thrusselton to his younger son.

= Trenchard Walter Trenchard
of Collacomb.
I
= Isabel heiress ux 1** Tho. Tremaine
2" Sir John Damarel of North Huish, Sydenham and
Whitchurch which he left to his stepson
Nicholas Tremaine.
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TREMAYNE MANORIAL + PROPERTY HOLDINGS

Manor of North Huish was sold by Arthur Tremayne to Eales and Luxmoor, it was afterwards purchased by

Richard Eales of Favellscombe who built upon it. In 1822 it was the property of Thomas King.

Manor and advowson of Coryton, Devon was from a remote period the property of a family so called which
removed to Cornwall. About 1608 John Coryton sold them to Sir Thomas Wise, they passed with the heiress to
Tremayne and belonged 1822 to William Newman.

Manor of Thrusselton belonged temp E1 (1272-1307) to Vipont after to Pomeroy and then to Trenchard
whose heiress married Tremaine. Cannabarne and Wrey.... in the parish belonged to Trenchard and Tremayne
who had the great tithes and patronage of the vicarage.

Collacombe in Lamerton came from Else to Trenchard 1295 and passed to Tremaine with the great tithes and
patronage of the vicarage, the land was sold to Eales, the church property remained in Tremayne 1822.

Manor of Maristow belonged to Hampton and passed to Trenchard, thence to Tremaine.

Manor of Raddon Alterford in the same parish was part of the Sydenham property, which passed from a
family of that name to Marrais, temp H4 (1399-1413) it passed to Wise whose heiress married Tremaine in the
17" century. The patronage of the vicarage which is endowed with part of the great tithes was in Tremayne
1822.

Rashleigh in Wemworthy, the original place of that family came by an heiress of the elder branch to
Clotworthy and passed again by marriage to Tremaine of Heligan.

Manor of Trelevan in Mevagissey belonged for many generations to Trewolla. It was sold in 1667 to Vincent
of Treeve. In the last century it was mortgaged to J. Knight of Gosfield, Essex whose widow carried it to the
Marquis of Buckingham. The barton was inhabited by Crowne and Stevens as lessees to Trewolla. Tonkin the
antiquary also lived there and would have inherited it from Vincent if the mortgage could have been redeemed.
Trelevan was purchased by Tremayne from the Duke of Buckingham.

Manor of Pentuan in Mevagissey was the seat of the Pentires where they removed from Pentire in Endellion.
The heiress married Roscarrock from whom it passed again to Dart by marriage. Lord Robartes purchased it
and it was again sold to Sir James Larocke. In 1792 it was purchased by Rev H. H. Tremayne who had
inherited the barton from the heiress of Dart.

The Barton of Trewinney formerly belonging to Spry is now in Tremayne.

Trewoone in St Mewan belonged to Kelly, one moiety is now in Hawkins and the other is shared by
Tremayne and Hoblyn derived from coheiresses of Pye. The advowson of the rectory is shared in the same
manner.

Manor of Penans Austell belonged temp E3 (1327-1377) to Hiwis whose heiress carried the Cornish estates of
that family to Copeshill, this manor was after in the name of Chywarton. 1634 it was the joint property of
Arundell and Trewren. Arundells moiety was purchased by Henry Hawkins 1724 and his heiress brought it to
Tremayne; the other moiety belonged 1640 to Oliver Sawle and was long in that family, it is now in Tremayne
except one field still the joint property of Tremayne and Sawle.

Manor of Lanestock in Tywardreth and St Blazey formerly belonging to Arundel of Trerice by inheritance
from Durant, passed to Sawle and Tremayne by the same title as the above.

Manor of Trevorder in Egloshayle belonged to Roscarrock and was one of the last estates they held in the
County, it has ceased to exist as a manor.

The Barton of Lower Trevorder their supposed seat came by Hearle to Tremayne. Crone or Crowan in that
parish belonged to Roscarrock and was sold to Hill and after to Hoblyn whose heiress Mrs Damaris Kirkham
left it to the Rev H.H. Tremayne together with Tregleah which had been acquired from Kekewich.

Manor of Lansladron belonged in Domesday book to Reginald de Valletort under the Earl of Cornwall,
afterwards to Serle de Lansladron temp E1.(1272-1307) His daughter married Govily whose heiress married
Trerice and on the failure of Serle’s male line the estate passed to Arundel. The manor with that of Tregone has
beensoldin ....... The barton belongs to Tremayne.

Manor of Heligan belonged to a family so called and passed through successive heiresses to Tregarthian and
Whitleigh whose coheiresses married Grenville and Hals. Sampson Tremayne purchased it in moieties temp
Elizabeth.

Tregonan in St Ewe once a seat of Beaumont, after of Tredenham and Scobell from whom it is now jointly by
Tremayne and Hext.

Kistell Wartha and Wollas formerly residences of Tremayne are still in the family.

Bosew belongs also to Tremayne, it was held by Crosse from Arundel.

The Barton of Nancallan in Gorran belonged to Roscarrock and passed by sale successively to Hill, Denham,
Hancock and Tremayne
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COLLACOMBE DEVON BRANCH

Thomas Tremaine and his wife obtained leave in 1448 from Edmund Lacy, Bishop of Exeter to have divine
service celebrated in their presence within their Manor of Collacombe.

John Tremaine petitioned the Prince 29.E3 (1356) to have the manor of Godrevy restored to him and Thomas
Carminow, it having been seized during a minority by the Duchy steward, the petition was granted. Another
inquisition is recorded as taken 30.E3 (1357) at the suit of John Tremaine or Tremean, and in 15.R2 (1392) he
was witness to a deed concerning the manor of Allet. He was Sheriff temp H4 (1399-1413) and in that Kings
31 year a commissioner for raising ... aid on the marriage of the Lady Blanch. A note of charges in the ....
Forth of his patent was existing in the hands of his descendant in 1665. He is termed John Tremaine Senior to
distinguish him from John son of his brother Thomas. This Thomas by marriage with Trenchard of Collacomb
brought much land into the family and removed it to Devon.

Sir John Damarel the second husband of Isabella Trenchard was so attached to her that he left North Huish and
Whitchurch with both advowsons to her son Nicholas Tremaine, making her executrix to his Will, which deed
with her own Will was to be seen at Collacomb in 1767.

This Nicholas who lived in the time of R2 (1377-1399) and three following reigns founded a hospital in
Tavistock dedicated to St George, and in 1.H4 (1400) when he succeeded to his mother Dame Isabel Damarel
in the manor of Whitchurch he manumitted John Hurt one of her tenants.

His son Thomas was one of the chief men of Devon who 12.H5 (1425) made oath for themselves and their
retainers to observe the existing laws. His wife Elizabeth Carew is said to have possessed “a swinging fortune
for those days” viz 100 merks, and in return was allowed £5 6s a very large sum for the period. They erected
painted windows in the churches of Sydenham Damarell, and Kelly.

Their son John was the last who bore the arms of Erney /Ermy as his paternal coat. His wife was probably of
the Warre’s of Somerset as her arms were like theirs, Gules 2 wings azure, in chief a bend azure charged with a
crescent or. The Cornish property (Carwythenack Manor Constantine) was given to their son John 9.H7 (1494)
but he died not to live to inherit that in Devon.

His son Thomas is said by Leland to be a man of fair lands. His second son Edmund by his inviolable fidelity
on the rack saved the Princess Elizabeth and Lord Courtney from Mary’s anger and was rewarded after her
death with the post of Clerk to the Council, he had previously been Secretary to Sir Henry Sidney in Ireland.
The city of Exeter gave him in 1574 a pension of 40 shillings for good offices received and expected; he was
M.P. for Plymouth and succeeded to the estate on failure of heirs to his eldest brother, as Digory the 3" son did
at his death.

The 4™ son Richard fled into Germany to avoid the Marian persecution, and was recompensed in Elizabeth’s
days with ample preferment, he was the first Vicar of Menheniot after the Reformation and a celebrated
preacher. He gave to Exeter College Oxford the King of Spain’s bible printed at Antwerp in 8 vols.folio.
Nicholas and Andrew sixth and seventh sons were the celebrated twins whose personal likeness and wondrous
mental sympathy excited so much interest among their contemporaries. They perished as they lived
together at Havre de Grace in 1564, where one being slain the other stepped into his place and met a like fate.
Roger the eldest son of this large family had as early as 1550 a grant of all his father’s lands in Cornwall.
Digorys only son Arthur, was on his father’s death the only male descendant of Thomas and Phillipa, a
remarkable circumstance in a family of eight sons.

Arthur b1553 married Mary daughter of Sir Richard Grenville of Stowe 2 June 1586 at Kilhampton.

Edmund 1* son b 1587 married Bridget daughter of Sir John Cooper.

Edmund’s son Arthur b1627commanded a regiment for the King and was severely handled for his loyality,
suffering plunder sequestration and imprisonment. He paid a large sum also which he borrowed for the use of
Queen Henrietta Maria when she lay in at Exeter, for which he was never compensated.

His son Edmund b1649 greatly increased the wealth of the family by his marriage with Arabella Wise and
removed to Sydenham. Collacombe is mentioned as a house in ruins at the time of Arthur Tremayne the father
of the last of this branch.
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NOTES ON THE SECOND BRANCH AT HELIGAN.

Richard Tremaine the 2™ son of John by Jane Warre was the oldest male in the family at the Visitation temp
H8 (1509-1547) and is supposed to have given in the pedigree. His nephew Thomas of Collacomb is named in
his Will 1554. He died at Tetburne St Mary but was stiled of Upcott, his younger son Sampson was his
executor. His eldest Oliver died before him leaving his son William in Ward to his cousin Thomas of
Collacomb, the said Thomas and his son Roger made over the Wardship of the boy to his grandfather Richard
on payment of £24.

John the 4™ son of Richard was the first who had Tregonan, where he resided and which he left to his brother
Henry’s son Richard of whom Carew speaks so warmly, it was this Richard who entered the pedigree in the
Visitation of 1573, and leaving only a daughter bequeathed Tregonan to his cousin Sampson second son of
Oliver who then resided at Dorchester and being too old to move sent his son Oliver to live there. This Oliver
died 1649 and was buried by night as a recusant as was his daughter Mary. He is said to have married in 1635 a
second wife called Jenefer Coffyn name of the first is not mentioned, his son John sold Tregonan, and leaving
but one son who died unmarried in London that branch became extinct. The record does not detail the
extinction of the next branch represented by Richard Tremaine of Gwennap but it must have accurred because
the descendants of Sampson Tremaine of Heligan came to be considered as next of kin to Collacomb.This
Sampson lived at his wife’s house at Tredowne till the death of his father and then moved to Trelissick where
he died 1593 bequeathing 3s 4d to the poor of St Ewe, his father had left one shilling to every parish in which
he had land. His son William obtained a large fortune with his wife amounting in land and otherwise, her
sisters and coheiresses married Hoblyn and Bone they were daughters of John Pye. This William began to build
at Heligan in 1597 and removed there in 1604. Bone and his wife released their third of Trewoone to Tremaine
and Hoblyn.

William Tremaine left 13s 4d to the poor of St Ewe and 6s 4d to the poor of Broadwood + Widger,(quire was it
not 6/8?).

His two eldest sons died before him and the 3™ Oliver only held the estates for sixteen months and his next
brother Thomas though living at his father’s death must have died during that period for John the 5™ son
succeeded, he added to the buildings at Heligan and suffered much both for his own loyalty, and by way of
reprisal for the acts of his son Lewis, his wife Jane was buried by night, probably as a recusant.

Their eldest son the above named Lewis was a most zealous Cavalier who maintained Pendennis against the
Parliamentarians having occupied it with his own regiment.

On the surrender of the castle he had a safe conduct from Richard Fortescue commanding under Sir Thomas
Fairfax and from Vice Admiral William Batten to go to his house at St Ewe, which refutes the extraordinary
tradition of his having escaped by swimming from Pendennis to St Mawes. After many sufferings, flight
imprisonment and money losses, he resided with his wife at Tamerton for six years, always ready to take
journeys at the hazard of his life for the Kings service, and keeping arms and ammunition prepared for any
opportunity. He had many severe wounds but lived to see the Restoration though still persecuted by his
enemies.

A certificate of his great services was signed 1661 by Bath, Wrey, Godolphin, Vivian, Courtney, Arundel,
Smith and Roscarrock.

He was much employed by Charles 2™ in Cornwall; was Lt Governor of St Mawes & ccc.

He succeeded 1681 to the Dart estate and much augmented Heligan. He gave to St Ewe £3 10s, to St Mawes £2
10s to Mevagissey £1 10s and to St Gorran and St Mewan each £1 Ss.

Also by deed 40s pr an to St Ewe and St Mawes besides other gifts. His wife was also very liberal to the poor.
Colonel Tremayne’s eldest son John was Knighted 1689 and leaving no issue entailed the estate on his brother
Charles and failing his issue on his cousin Arthur of Collacomb and his son.

The next brother to Sir John, Lewis was alive at the time of their father’s death but never returned from sea.
The widow of Charles Tremaine remarried to his successor in the vicarage of St Austell; she left 50s to the poor
of that parish and the same sum to St Erme her native place.
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Lewis son of Charles was named Sheriff in 1712 and 1719 but got himself excused. He left by Will to the poor
of St Ewe £10, St Austell £5, Mevagissey and St Mewan £2, Gorran £3 and St Just £2, Wemworthy £5,
Winkley £4, South Molton and Witheridge £3 and Barnstaple £2, and entailed his estates failing his sons issue
on his kinsman Arthur Tremayne of Collacomb.

His son John inherited from his mother a moiety of the Clotworthy estate and obtained the other moiety on the

death of Margaret Giffard who was daughter of his Aunt the other coheiress of Clotworthy, he thus

became the representative of the blood and wealth of that ancient family.

His wife Grace Hawkins brought the Manor of Lanestock and a fair estate in Mevagissey and elsewhere. She
left some of her lands to her 3" son Henry and 4 guineas to be distributed among 70 poor widows in St Austell
and three guineas to twenty six widows of St Ewe.

The sponsors of her eldest son Lewis were Francis Scobell of Tregonan, Dr John Hawkins of Penans, Barbara
Hawkins widow and Mary widow of John Courtney.

Those of her daughter Mary were Philip Hawkins of Trewithen, Francis Scobell Junr of Tregonan, Rachel
Hawkins widow and Barbara Hoblyn widow.

Those of her second son Lewis were Arthur Tremayne of Sydenham, J. Pendarves Basset of Tehidy, Grace
wife of Sir Francis Vivian of Trelowarren and Elizabeth Carlyon of Tregrehan.

The proxies who stood for the godfather were Francis Scobell Junr and William Archer of Trelewack.

This second Lewis died after a short illness at the age of 27 he left 300 guineas to St Ewe,

150 to Wemworthy and 50 to St Mewan to be employed in beautifying the respective churches. (quire, how
much of this “beautifying” consisted in defacing the beauties of former ages of better taste?) T.S.G.

The third son Henry had for sponsors, William Archer of Trelewack, John Fortescue of Penwarne, Barbara
Hawkins widow his grandmother and Gertrude wife of Thomas Hext his Aunt . He was ordained in 1766 a few
months before the unexpected death of this brother put him in possession of the family property which he
increased by marriage with Harriet coheiress of John Hearle of Penryn, this lady who was left early without
parents was bred under the care of Mrs Boscawen wife of the Admiral and proved a woman of very superior
understanding. She died after a lingering illness of five years universally loved and respected. Her husband
closed a long life of active usefulness and the most extended benevolence at the age of 87.

The sponsors of his infant sister Barbara were J.D. Birkhead of Euny, Francis Carthew vicar of Manaccan,
Agnes Sawle widow of Penrice, and Elizabeth Hawkins of Helstone.

Those of his youngest sister Grace who married Charles Rashleigh were Revd John Pomeroy of Trelissick,
Revd Edward Carthew Rector of St Mewan, Barbara Hawkins widow whose proxy was her daughter Mrs Hext,
and Elizabeth Jones widow.

The above notes were taken from the hand written Gregor volumes G1948 of the
pedigree of the Tremayne family of Heligan kept at the Cornwall Record Office,
Truro,Cornwall.
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www.nationalarchives.com

Extracts from Tremayne family of Heligan Cornwall Record Office archives

16 Oct 1516 8Henviii
Tedburn Manor, Devon
Thomas Tremayne esq, tenant.

10 Sept 1546

Deeds and leases

South Petherwin

John Tremayne, son of R.T. lands in {....} Clennyck

19 Jan 1556/7
Probate
Inventory of Richard Tremayne esq. of St Mary Tebborn praised by William Langford and John Tremayne.

CALENDAR of State Papers Foreign, Elizabeth:1563

27 May 1563 Warwick (Govenor of New-Haven) to Cecil

Yesterday the Rhinegrave came down the hill with his main force to visit them, having two days before sent to
Captain Hemerye from Honfleur with his company on that side the water, for the better maintaining of his
enterprise, which he supposes was partly to show bravery, and partly that he might view their new works in the
ditches. They were so well answered that they lost in the field two captains of ruiters, one enseignbearer, and
about 150 soldiers. And at the encounter they lost Captain Tremayn, who was slain with a pistolet in the left
side of his head, by a “chain shot, which the rutters commonly use”. The conflict ended in three hours with the
loss of twenty of their soldiers.Their men did as well as any could do. Captain Horsey with his band pushed
with the pike against their horsemen, and hurt and overthrew divers of them and their horses. — Newhaven,
May 1563. Signed.

16 Feb 1573/4
Marriage settlement by Edmund Tremayne on marriage of Hannibal Vyvyan and Phillipa Tremayne.

1 Feb 1574/5 17elizi
Leasing of Tedburn Barton.
Sampson Tremayne of Lanhearne, gent.

23 Apr 1576
Stewardship
Copy of Letter Patent appt. Edmund Tremaine esq receiver general of the Counties of Devon and Cornwall.

26 Jan 1579/80
From R Tremayne to his uncle Sampson Tremayne at Trelysick (written from the “ castell of Launceston”)
concerning patching up a quarrel between S. T. & his son. Also other estate business.

29 Nov 1591
Mary Isham, late of Bodrugan, widow, Richard Tremayne, her son and heir.

2 Jun 1595

Lanhadron

Cotna

Jane Tremaine, daughter of Henry Tremaine, gentleman (deceased).

Michaelmas term 1596

Probus

Title deeds

Wm Tremayne and Anthony Pye, querants and Peter Benadluck gent and Thos. Williams jnr and w Mary
deforciants.
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Easter term 1598 40 Elizi
Tedburn Manor, Devon
Sampson Tremayne, gent Helen his wife, and Oliver Tremayne gent.

Late 16™ century

From Richard Tremayne to his uncle (Sampson Tremayne) concerning ““ very unnaturall and ungodlye
myslykinge growen betwixte my cosin Duncalf and his wyef.....they shove themselves verye unnaturall
folck....”

6 Sep 1601
Richard Tremayne of Tregonnan, W. Treffry & Ursula his wife, John Dynham & Elizabeth his wife, Sampson
Tremayne of Dorchester, John Tremayne of St Creed, gent.

6 Sep 1601

The Manor of West Boarhunt and estates of the Henslowe family in Hampshire and other counties.

Fragment of settlement by Richard Tremayne upon the marriage of Thomas Henslowe, son of Thomas
Henslowe of West Boarhunt, and Mary Tremayne, of an annuity of £40 out of his lands in Cornwall date

(6 September 1601)

......... refers to various members of the Tremayne family, William Tressey (Treffry) and Ursula his wife, John
Dynham and Elizabeth his wife.

No date (possibly abt 1601)
Bill in chancery Tremayne v Randall (Richard Tremayne named Elizabeth Lamanva, daug of John Lamanva,
of Budock, gent.

No date (possibly abt 1640)
Properties involved in Mabe, Madron, Morvah, Budock...... Richard Tremayne of Gwennap
Son of above Richard Tremayne and Elizabeth Lamanva

31 Oct 1610

Deeds and leases

St Ewe

John Tremayne, p. Morwinstowe, gent.

23 Jul 1614
Order from Justices of the Peace that Oliver Tremayne pay 12d a week for the upkeep of a base child, born to
Johan Rate, of whom Oliver Tremayne is the reputed father.

2 Aug 1614

Deeds and leases

St Ewe

Thomas Hoblyn of Nanswiddon, gent and John Tremayne of St Mewan, gent.

1 Aug 1615

Deeds and leases

Morwenstowe, Egloskerry (Nr Launceston) Stratton (Nr Bude) and lands in Devon
John Tremayne of Morwenstowe and Jane his wife.

20 July 1622

Deeds and leases

Morwenstowe, Egloskerry, Stratton, and lands in Devon

Priscilla Geake, p. Budock widow (daughter of John Tremayne, late of Morwenstowe)

18 Sept 1628

Deeds and leases

Morwenstowe, Egloskerry, Stratton and lands in Devon.

Edward Cleere, p. St Ewe, yeo and Johan his wife (formerly daug. and co-heir of John Tremayne, late of
Morwenstowe, gent.)
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17 Feb 1640/41
Livery of seisin 7 jun 1641 by attornies witd by Zachary Arundell, Thos Cooke, Wm Tanner, Philip Tremayne
and Thos Berry.

21 Mar 1641
From Mr Oughe to Digory Tremayne abt setting out of grounds.

1 Nov 1644

Manor Of Tucoys

Leases

Counterpart indented receipt from Peirs Edgcumbe, esq. to John Hicks, gent., for relief of 7s 4 3/4d on
alienation by Oliver Tremaine to John Hicks of 1 acre Cornish for Trelissick in St Ewe held by knight service.

14 Dec 1645
Letter written by R Grenville to Lewis Tremayne ordering L.T. to collect his forces at Stratton as the “enemy
being advanced to Crediton” (about 2000 Horse and Foote)

24 May 1646

Letter from John Tremayne to his son Lewis Tremayne at Pendennis Castle complaining of his imprisonment
at Penryn because of L.T.s taking 2 parliamentary soldiers prisoner and asking L.T. to remember J.T.s “
inhabilitye of bodye and how unable I am to indure imprisonmt”

20 Jul 1646

Letter from Lewis Tremayne to Col Fortescue stating L.T.s “ready att any time when you please, to give you
such as you shall desire, or can expect” — a challenge concerning C.F.s imprisonment of L.T.s father and
questioninge my gentillitye and reputation”

12 Feb 1656/57
Writs from the Sheriff of Devon for the arrest of John Giles esq to answer plea of trespass by Frances
Tremayne. (see next entry)

2 May 1657

John Gyles of Bowden Esq, his bill in chancery concerning his marriage to Frances Tremayne, p. Tamerton,
spinster. John Gyles claims he had been tricked into marriage when visiting Richard Arundell’s house at
Marstoe, p. Tamerton mentions “ an alehouse or other meane and obscure house not farr distant from Richard
Arundells house”.

(Frances b1625 dau of John Tremayne/ Jane Wallis als Dart)

13 Aug 1657
Marriage settlement; John Tremayne married Ann Tanner, aunt of Anthony Tanner and Julian, wife of Mathew
Vivian.

17 March 1661/2

Certificate of the character of Lewis Tremayne ‘one of the first that tooke up armes in his late maiesties service
and one of the last that layd them down....... that he never had the reputation of a cruell ill natured Insolent or
Tyrannical person in Command or Conversation signed by Earl of Bath, Godolphin, Vyvyan, Arundell, Hele,
Smyth, Roscarrock, Courtenay, Maggstaffe.

31 May 1661

Notes “we beinge att Mr Naptons house John Hicke beinge in discourse concerninge the elections of Burgesses
with us he declared and protested that Sir Wm. Tredenham and Mr Arthur Spry desired him 2 or 5 tymes to
give his voyce for them to be Burgesses of the towne to serve in the next parlyament which he denied but
beinge afterwards importuned he gave his voyce for them as he sayd”.

Witness our hands the day and yeare above sayd! Lewes Tremayne and Phillip Tremayne

4 Jul 1661

From John Tremayne to his grandfather John Tremayne mentioning his father’s business and saying to
“beleeve false reports which the vulgar peopell may give concerning my father’s business” also stress his need
to be sent some “quills”.
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9 July 1661
Order from Sir Richard Vyvyan to Lewes Tremaine to take the arms out of St Mawes Castle;
84 decayed muskets, 38 decayed swords, six old decayed belts, 17 old decayed collers of bandileers......

5 March 1663 Creed
John Tremaine,gent Mayor of Boro Grampound, William Fye, gent John Sloggett, Peter Hearle, Michael
Crowden, Degory Tresize, Walter Hawkins, Robert Bray and James Hue. Burgesses of boro.Grampound.

30 Apr 1664

From JohnTremayne to his grandfather John Tremayne saying he received warming pan skillet etc..... from
cousin Hugh Beketh, and to send them to St Ewe....pleased to lend me ye dictionary which was my cosen John
Tanners.

Great Fire of London
Description of the Great Fire of London written by John Tremayne to his father Col. Lewis Tremayne at St
Mawes, Cornwall. 22 Sep 1666

23 Jun 1668
From John Tremayne to his father Lewis Tremayne concerning family news particular reference to J.T.s
brother Lewis “some of ye men were in ye voyage with him, who say hee is a very able seaman...”

17 Apr 1671
From Charles Tremayne to his father Lewis Tremayne concerning C.T.s expenses on arriving at Cambridge
and probale costs of education and “I have neede of many bookes.....”

15 May 1679

Letter from Lewis Tremayne to John Tremayne asking J.T. to see if there is any possibility that “the Kings old
officers may be remembered and not like hownds past hunting, turned out of the kennell without provision for
meate and lodging”

14 Jul 1679

From Lewis Tremayne to John Tremayne concerning L.T.s meeting with John Carew at Fowey, “ if possible
can you pray get me a good seacond hand bearer with a deepe pall to take in my head tho he be broade
brimmed and now out of fassion I care not, for I want a hat to ride in and keeping my head warme and cannot
get one in the country the bigness of yr head will suffice I suppose and ame confident there are many to be had
of the late broad brimmed fassion that being now out among the fassionists, {...}y haberdasher I know will
get your choyce therefore forget me not butt get me a good one that will endure raine.....”

24 May 1681
1.0.U. from Phillip Tremayne to Lewis Tremayne for £1

9 Sep 1685
Note by John Tremayne concerning his grandmother Ann Tremayne’s settlement and of £4 per annum to be
paid out of lands in Kestle to “my uncle Phillippe Tremayne”

5 Apr 1688

Articles of agreement between John Tremayne of Middle Temple esq, and Richard Burges, brickmaker, for the
supplying of 300,000 bricks to be used in building of Heligan House.

Measurements and standard of brick described. R. Burges to be paid 5/- per 1,000 bricks.

Bricks to be made by 10" Aug 1688, and work to start 6™ May 1688.

15 Jun 1692

From Mary Tremayne (wife of Lewis) to Sir John Tremayne her son concerning bill for £50 of Henry Hawking
and “you cannot imagine the dayly ocasion is here for money and yet I am careful of it as if it ware the bread
out of my owne mouth I can doe no more to save it”

21 Dec 1693

From Mary Williams to her mother Mary Tremayne (wife of Lewis) *“ I wish I could tell whereinto express the
duty and love I owe you, and you have always merited in a high measure of me : pray lett not my death
trouble you........ severall letters to be given you after my death......... I have burnt them all....”
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21 Jan 1711/12
Letter from John Eveleigh to Lewis Tremayne congratulating Lewis Tremayne on his appointment of Sheriff
and to keep “yr shrievalty at the bearer’s house at Launceston.....”

15 Dec 1735
From M. Courtenay to John Tremayne “ye smallpox is come to North Moulton....other local news.

2 Apr 1741
From Margaret Courtenay to John Tremayne concerning general estate and also *“ we have not had anay (rain)
this seven weeks....a strange thing near me at Watchet a cow had seven calves....

30 Nov 1741
From R Carthew to John Tremayne “beg leave to congratulate you on yr victory over bete and ye dragon, or in
other words over a woman and a priest”

21 Feb 1754
Letter from Grace Tremayne to Anna Carthew concerning paper (deeds) being sent to A.C. and health of family
“the chilbleans, the best thing I know of is to wash the feet with camphorated spirits...... ”

18 April 1820

Letter from J.H. Tremayne to his father re general home and family business and mention of a man selling his
wife in the public market for 6d to 2/6d (two bidders).

Written from Launceston.

1821

From J.H.Tremayne to his father re business at Exeter, the Coplestones, St Day mines, “We have been bothered
the whole evening by an old shooting acquaintance of mine- Mr Geo. Boscawen son of Genl. George
Boscawen, his stories are even longer than when I saw him last”

21 July 1822

From J. H. Tremayne to his father re justices meeting, estate business, Harry’s illness, cut wheat in several
places. Jn. Buller is prevented from coming to Trebartha by his servants illness- Rodd says he cannot shave
himself- and therefore he cannot move without his shaver. I think rather than submit to that confinement I
would let my beard grow as long as any Jew Rabbi’s

Written at Launceston.

11 Sep 1846
Notification from Lieut. Gen. Lord Fitzroy Somerset to J.H.Tremayne that Mr Arthur Tremayne appointed to a
Cornetcy by purchase in the 13" Light Dragoons.

6 Sep 1847
From Arthur Tremayne to his father “ after I sent my last letter away to you smallpox broke out on me so I
have not written since from fear of sending you the infection but the Doctor assures me there is not the least

danger of that......... a very mild attack....”. Follows description of smallpox attack and general gossip.
Dublin.

4 Oct 1847

From Arthur Tremayne to his father.... “ I am quite ashamed to write to you about money.... I collected my

bills before leaving Dublin..... I know how foolish and extravagant I have been...

9 Oct 1847 Mullingar.

From Felton Harvey to J. H. Tremayne re the purchase of Lieutenancy for Arthur Tremayne i.e. £2000. *“ I
suppose you are aware that the Horse Guards do not recognize anything above regulation and in any
communication which you may have with any Army official nothing must be said about the extra sum.....”

3 Nov 1847

From Arthur Tremayne to his father re Christmas leave....” The generals seen to fear a row this winter” (they
are all old women)
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25 Dec 1847

From Arthur Tremayne to his father re expenses, sale of horse, dining out, the army amusement “you are the
best fellow I know, the greatest friend I have, but I wish you’d leave the Regiment and give me promotion.
This is always the feeling....... ” “It is hard snow again here and very cold; this is awful for the poor. People
here seem to think that the story of the quantity of arms purchased and obtained by the poor is exaggerated; and
that no disturbance whatever will occur....” Also description of disturbance at Dunganoon.

25 Dec 1847 (Royal Barracks).

21 Sep 1858

(1) Arthur Tremayne of Piccadilly, Middx (2) Hon. Frances Margt Hely-Hutchinson of Ely, Dublin, spr. (3)
Rich. Jn. Earl of Donoughmore, Tipperary, Hon. Rich. Hely- Hutchinson of Sackville St, Dublin, and Jn
Tremayne of Heligan, esq, on marriage between Arthur Tremayne and Lady Frances Margt Hely- Hutchinson.

30 Jan 1883
Caroline Tremayne’s marriage settlement 1882
(1) Caroline mary Tremayne of Carclew, spr, (2) her father Arthur Tremayne (3) Francis Alexander of
Calcot Park, esq, (4) his father Caledon Du Pre Alexander,esq, (5) Wm Francis Tremayne of
Carclew, esq, George Henry Boscawen of Lamorran, esq, and John Dalison Alexander and Wm Mark
Alexander of London, esq, on marriage between Caroline and Francis.

21 March 1932
Conditions for the sale of grass on Foghanger Farm, Milton Abbot, the property of the representatives of the
late Miss Jane Vawden Tremayne.
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CRIMEA 25 Oct 1854

The Charge of the Light Brigade

The 13™ at Balaclava.

Today has seen some astonishing feats of arms by the British Army. It started with the sudden appearance of a
strong force of Russian infantry, cavalry and guns intending to drive the British from their base at Balaclava
while the main allied force was engaged in the siege of Sevastopol some six miles away.

The first honours of the day went to the 93" Highlanders under Sir Colin Campbell. Standing firm in a thin red
line, they destroyed a Russian cavalry charge with disciplined rifle fire. Then it was the turn of Brigadier-
General Scarlett and his Heavy Brigade. The Scots Greys and the Enniskillens, followed by the Royal Irish, the
Dragoon Guards and the Royal Dragoons, hurled themselves, sabres slashing, at 3,000 Russian cavalry to drive
them from the field. There followed a most extraordinary event.

Lord Raglan sent orders to Lord Lucan, the divisional commander, to prevent the Russians from carrying off
some captured guns. The orders were not clear, and Lucan mistakenly ordered Lord Cardigan, commanding the
Light Brigade, to attack well-defended Russian guns at the end of a long valley.

The Light Brigade set off as if it were in review, riding into a maelstrom of shot and shell fired at it from all
sides. It reached the guns, sabred the gunners and then fought its way out. Of the 673 men who took part in this
murderous encounter only 426 returned unhurt. General Boisquet watched in awe and said *“ C’est magnifique,
mais ce n’est pas la guerre.

[Magnificent, but not war]

Of the officers of the 13" the following were present at Balaclava

A Troop Captain Oldham and Cornet Montgomery

B Troop Captain Jenyns and Lieutenant Jervis

D Troop Captain Goad and (for a time) Cornet Goad

E Troop Captain Arthur Tremayne, Lieutenant Percy Smith, and Cornet
Chamberlayne.

The officers with the depot troops in England were Captains Holden and the Hon. John Hely-Hutchinson,
Lieutenants Clayton and Davis; and Cornets Dearden and Fielden.

Colonel Arthur Tremayne in his Crimea notes writes:-

“Nolan gave his message a few yards in front of where I was standing, talking to poor old Goad. We were
dismounted. There can be no doubt that Nolan gave the order to go where we did go. Cardigan told me
repeatedly afterwards. But I have no doubt Lord Raglan meant us to go along the southern valley and wheel to
the left, to prevent the guns being taken out of the Turks redouts”

He also writes:-

The men behaved splendidly, the last thing I heard before I went down (his horse was shot) was one man
saying to his neighbour, “ come on don’t let those [the 17™ Lancers] get ahead of us”. Neither did they. Nolan
was struck by a shot from the battery on our left, immediately we began to advance. This battery was driven off
by some Chasseurs D’ Afrique.

Colonel Tremayne pays a high tribute to the soldierly qualities of Lieutenant Percy Smith, who he says “gave
us all an example of steadiness”

The honour of the Victoria Cross came to the 13™ Light Dragoons, being awarded to Lance- Sergeant Joseph

Malone of the E Troop, commanded by Capt Tremayne.
See also www.pinetreeweb.com/13th-balaclava2.htm
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EXTRACT FROM THE
FALMOUTH PACKET 2 June 1900
Miss Tremayne’s Wedding

Presentation at Carclew

Carclew, the beautiful home of Colonel A. Tremayne, J.P., C.C., was on Thursday afternoon
the scene of an interesting and pleasing little function. As all Cornwall knows, the gallant
Colonel’s daughter, Miss Opre Tremayne, is to be married to Mr Norman Maclagan on
Tuesday week, and in anticipation of that happy event the estate tenantry made a
presentation to the bride-elect. The gift consisted of a handsome silver bowl, weighing over
120 ounces, of Queen Anne pattern, and mounted on an ebony plinth. The ceremony was
organised by a committee of which Mr J.T. Paull of Ruan Lanihorne, was chairman, and Mr
M.H. Holman, of Restronguet, the hon. Sec.,.......

The following inscription was engraved on the front:

“ Presented to Miss Opre Tremayne by the tenantry of the Carclew estate, on the
occasion of her marriage, 12" June 1900”

Those present at the ceremony included Colonel and Mrs Tremayne, Mr Arthur and Miss
Opre Tremayne, Mrs Smythe, Mr R Painter (steward) and the members of the committee.-

In making the presentation Mr Menhenick sincerely hoped that Miss Tremayne and her
future husband would have a bright happy and prosperous life-(applause)..................
Miss Tremayne, in thanking the tenants for the present said she would value it all her life,
more especially as it was also an expression of respect and love for her father and mother-
(applause)

Colonel Tremayne said they were very grateful for the tenant’s great kindness. The bowl was
good enough for the daughter of the Prince of Wales, but he was glad the Royal personage
had not got it-(laughter).He did not think his daughter was going to lead an idle and useless
life. Those in that immediate neighbourhood who knew her and came in contact with her
were aware that she was very unselfish (hearhear) and tried always to do what she could for
the good of those about her............

He wished that his two boys now in Africa were among them. Please God, the time would
come when they would return, and those present would learn to know then. He thought when
that knowledge had been gained they would not fail to brace his sons the same feeling they
had been kind enough to express on this occasion (applause)
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BOER WAR SHIPPING RETURN 1900

London Times 28 May 1900 (Monday)

Pl2a &b

The Kildonan Castle left Southampton yesterday with 52 officers, 1 warrant officer and 1658
men for South Africa. The ship will stop at Queenstown for an additional 22 officers and 951
men. The officers listed from Southampton are:

Lt-Col C. N. Miles 1/Life Guards, commanding.

1/Welsh Fusiliers- Maj H.T. Lyle, DSO, and Lt F.C.R. Price and 100 men.

2/Duke of Cornwall’s L.I.- Maj R.J. Wilbraham, Capt W.F.Tremayne, Lt E.B. Ward and 100

The Nubia arrived at Southampton on Tuesday (24/7/00) evening with sick and wounded
and landed them yesterday morning. Those listed included:
Returning home, Remount Dept. Capt W.F.Tremayne.

The Tantallon Castle left for England Nov 8. The following were listed on the passage home:
7/R Dragoons- Capt. Prince Francis of Teck.

4/Bedfordshire- Lt Col. Lord Cranborne.

9/Lancers- Lt. Lord Bentinck.

Reserve of officers- Maj H.A(Henry Arthur) Tremayne.

Tremayne family Wills available on www.nationalarchives.com

Joan Tremayne widow 16 Aug 1595

Degory Tremaine of Collocombe, Devon 6 May 1601

Arthur Tremayne of Lamerton 22Aug 1635

Sir John Tremayne, one of their Majestys Sergeants at Law 1 Mar 1694.
Mary Tremayne widow of Heligan 9 Feb 1702.

Anne Tremayne widow of Sydenham. 18 May 1711

Grace Tremayne widow of St Austell 3 Oct 1765

Lewis Tremayne of Heligan 29 Jan 1767

Arthur Tremayne of Sydenham 25 Feb 1809.

Revd Henry Hawkins Tremayne, clerk of Heligan 14 Apr 1829
John Hearle Tremayne of Heligan 10 Jan 1852.

Documented sources available for Tremayne research

Tudor Cornwall by A.L.Rowse
400years of Tremaynes by Ivor Herring
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DIONIS TREMAYNE (SPINSTER OF MORVAL) 1623
(dau of RogerTremayne b abt 1530 and Ann Coffin)

In the name of God Amen the first daye of March and in the three
and twentieth yeare of the raigne of our Soveraigne Lord James

by the grace of God King of Great Brittayne Ffrance and Ireland
defender of the faith. I Dionis Tremayne of Morvall in the

County of Cornwall Spinster, having perfect rememberance

(thanks be unto God who is the only health of the living and the
everlasting life of those which dye in him) doe by his permission make
this my Testament, declaring herein my last Will to be and stand
forever and none other. Ffirst according to the duty of a christyan

I commend my soule to God and my body to the earth, and ......

the gyft and despose of those goods and chattels which doe remayne
unto me in this myne old yeeres though they be but small. I give and
dispose them in manner and forme as followeth. That is to say I

give and bequeath to the poore of the parish of Duloe twenty shillings.
Also I give and bequeath unto Orange Reeve who hath beene long
with me and done me service my bedd whereon I lye .......

and soe much of my apparel as shalbe worth twenty shillings.

The rest of my goods and chattels whatsoever (my debts legacyes and
funeral first deducted payd and satissfyed according to the true intent
of this my present Will) I wholly give devise and appointe to Phillip
Mayow esq (who hath maryed Edith my sisters daughter, which was
brought upp by me and who hath ever beene loving and dutifull unto
mee) and I ordayne name and appoint him to be the sole executor

of this my present Testament, and I doe appoint and ....... my
good friends Mr John Gyll and Mr Stephen Mayow, Merchant to be
overseers of this my Wyll and Testament that it may be performed
according to my true meaning, and for the further truth hereof I

have to this my present Testament putt my hand and seale .....

day and yeare above written.

Dionis Tremayne

Sealed and subscribed by the .... Named

Dionis Tremayne in the presence of Stephen Mayow
Rich: Polstagge
Amo Vosper

A true and perfect inventory of all the goods

and chattels of Dionis Tremayne late of

Morvall deceased prized by Stephen Mayow

and Richard Polstagge the xxxi th of March

1624 as followeth

in primis her wearing apparell XXX S

Item her bedd and furniture ...

Item one byll of debt from John

Smyth of Lan............. £XX ....
Suma total £XX.... ...

* Phillip Mayow of Brey, Morvall had married Edith the daughter of Hannibal Vyvyan and
Phillippa nee Tremayne of Trelowarren, Cornwall
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*JOHN TREMAYNE OF CREED 6 MAY 1611 Letters of Admin
(son of Richard Tremayne b1552 and Elizabeth Garth)

...... per presentes...George Tremayne parish de
Padstow in County Cornwall Yeoman and Jenking Daniell de Truero ....

............... obligan Willmo Huchensonn ...... ...the .... ...............
Cornwall in LJdibris L legalis ... coovvee e s
....... Willmo Huchensonn and such in that parte ............executor.....
Admminisstratus success....nor ..... ........ ....made ..... ... .....

of oo obliga... ...... norof ..... ..... ...
........ goodes executrix and admministres who ...... per present
......... and .......
Andkepedew and ..... ...... ... i kepe from
......................................................... play to. 1611

Condition of this present obligation is such that if the boundaith George

Tremayne doe will @ truly administer thee @ singular the goods chattles

debts of John Tremayne his brother late of the parish of Creede deceased.

That is to sae doe first pay the debts of the said deceased @ then the legacies if any
... forme.. .his the same goods chattels@ debts will extome @ the .........

inthat ...... shall charge hym@ herefor doe yeld .... .... and perfect accompt

of all@ singular the goods chattels (@ debts of the said deceased unto yt is granted yn
effect of the Archdeaconurie of Cornwall before the laste daye of Aprill.
allowinge: and all such goods chattels chittles @ debts as shall remaine@ be

dewe upon the said accompt examined @ allowed,doe distribute @ dispose

in such sort in manner (@ forme shelbe limited @ appointed by my .......

....of the said office of the Archdeconury of Cornwall for the ......... .......

....1f same......... appeare to have any better ....title or whereof to the

said goods then the said George Tremayne (his brother) hath ......... .......

to ensue by vertewe of .... .... ifhe .... ... lawfull ... ....... ...

............ the said office the said Letters of Adminisstration..... ....... With

such ....... by virtue thereof .....to his ............ or possession (@ shalbe

without fraud or ..... that then this present obligan to bee in power@

of nowe effectorelse to ...... @ bee in my full form @ ...............

George Tremayne
Jenking Daniell

Sealed @ declared in the presence of
William Friggens
John Stepens

QR



WILL of JOHN TREMAYNE of LAMETTON, St KEYNE. Gentleman 1611
(b abt 1535 5™ son of Thomas Tremayne and Phillipa Grenville)

For as much as there is nothing more certain than death, nor nothing more certain than

the tyme thereof and presently great troble and...... ....... in these..... be there with
I do show the most mercifull ffather through his sonne and savior Jesus Christ to
withdraw from .... is ...be his good pleasure..... to give ......... .... so before his

gratious visitation with humbleness and meekenes, and have thought good tomake this my
last Will and Testament whereby I hope to be the more quiett in mynd from all worldly
cares, when it shall please God to calle me from this wicked world in forme ffolowing
viz In the name of God the father, God the sonne and God the Holy Ghost .... .....and
of God. I John Tremayne of Lametton in the County of Cornwall, Gent being in perfect
health and body and mynd(thankes be given to God) at the making hereof do pray the ffather
through the meditation of Jesus Christ his sun and savior in whome is myne only (@ whole,
trust to forgive my sinnes and to recind my soule when yt shall please God of his
goodnes to take yt from the present of this vile ....., my will and desire is
to have my body to be buried in such convenient place(without.... .... ceremonies)
as shalbe thought good to my executrix and others my good friends, ffurther I give
and bequeath to the releife of the poore of the parish of Keyne 5s also I give and
bequeath to the releife of the poore of the parish of Thrushelton .... Item I give and
bequeath to the releife of the poore of the parish of Siddenham Damell.... Item I
give and bequeath unto my Godsonnes John Elliott, John Harris and Oliver Denis and
also to Mary Denis to every of them severally ... and to my sonne Reyneles two
children ... and unto every of my other God children ....a yeare. Also |
give and bequeath unto my brother in law Mr Arthur Coplestone the best suite
of apparrells that I shall have at the time of my death. I give and bequeathe unto
my nephew Tremaines childrento ...... ....... equally between them .... with
his pleasure. I give and bequeath unto my nephew Tremayne himselfe all my bittes
and .....for horses, also I give unto my cozen Edmund Tremaine all my Latin
bookes that I shall have at the tyme of my death and all my English bookes I
give unto Thomasine my wife and Ffrances her daughter. Also my Will is that Julian
my mayd that was shall have that which my wife and I have concluded on. Allso
I give amongst my servants men or women that ...... for wages in quarterly ...
yeres wages above that shalbe dew at the tyme of my death. Also I give and bequeath
unto my nephew Edward Southcott 20s. If my wife do not continue after my death
the....yearly that I have paid him, is so do then the 20s that I give him by this
my will to be .... .....All other my goods and chattels sobequeathed and my debts
payd and my ffunerall xpenses I give and bequeath unto Thomasine my wife whome I
make and institute my hole and sole executrix of this my last Will and Testament. I do
most earnestly desire her ( as I know so ....me to be....dewly performed
and provided allowals that soo shall and be charged with any at these legacies
that [ have set downe herein within a whole yeare after my death............ at
her pleasure please, I witness that this is my very and true Will I have here unto
set my name and seale ....... the forouth of Aprill 1606 and in the yeare of
our soveraigne Lord James by the grace of God of England, Ffrance and Ireland...
defender of the faith the ........ and of Scotland the .....
John Tremaine
Published and acknowledged to be my last Will and
Testament the sixth day of August 1607 in
Presense of these whome names do folow
Gilles Juglothe
Rich: Deme Plus Inventory.
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WILL OF JOHANE TREMAYNE dated 1592

(wife of Richard Tremayne b abt 1535 son of Thomas Tremayne and Phillipa Grenville)

IN THE NAME OF GOD AMEN and by his grace without the ...

which we are nothinge. I Johane Tremayne late wife of Richard Tremayne preacher do &

make and ordayne my last will and testament in manner and forme folowing in the tyme of

my perfect health praysed be God. I ...my soule assured hope of salvation to my creator

and my redeemer: my bodye to the earth with ...in my ... to bury me without any

pompe.I give and bequeathe to Peter Adams ten poundes. I give and bequeathe to John Snowe tenne
poundes. I give and bequeathe to Edward Southcott Roger Southcott Robert Southcott three poundes
a peece. I give and bequeathe to Mary Dennys and Katherine Dennys ffyve poundes a peece. I give
and bequeathe to Philippe Denys Edmond Denys and Richard Denys and Oliver Denys three poundes
a peece the children of my late good husbands sisters and servants. I give and bequeathe to Dorothie
Prowse the daughter of Robert Prowse twentie poundes. I give and bequeathe to the poore widowes
in the citty of Exeter tenne poundes. I give unto the widowe Heale in Exeter one frock of my apparel.
I give and bequeathe to the poore of Lawton fortie shillings. I give and bequeathe to the poore
widowes in Combe Martin seven poundes. I give unto the poore of Ilfracombe twentie shillings. I
give to the poore of Menheniot seven poundes. I give to the poore of .....

thirtie shillings.I give to the poore of ....... Twentie shillings. I give to the poore of Chydley thirtie
shillings. I give unto Roger Courtney my cosen kenman tenne poundes. I give unto the poore of East
Looe and West Looe thirtie shillings. I give unto the poore of Bodmine thirtie shillings.I give unto
Masts Howell the preacher of Maker tenne poundes. I give unto Johane Trevillian late the wife of
John Trevillian tenne poundes. My will ys that my executrix paye unto John Southcott sixe poundes
yerelie out of my lease of Lower Moreshill during the tearme of my lease ys his so longe live. My
will ys that myne executrix paye yerelie ......

my lease of Moreshill to the poore of that parish owning the tearme of my lease twentie shillings. My
will ys that my executrix paye yerelie unto my lease of Moreshill to the vicar of that parish yerelie
during the tearme of my lease three poundes yf he have no other.......

before that. My lease of Combestock I give unto Thomas Dennys my .....paying yerelie out of sayed
lease .....the tearme thereof unto his brother Henry Denys eight poundes. Allso paying yerelie out of
the said lease .....the...of Combestock during the lease three poundes paying yerelie out of the sayed
lease unto the poore of that parish twentie shillings. I do by this my last will and testament make and
ordayne Abigall FFaringdon known by the name of Radigan myne only and sole exer’ to whome I
give all my goodes ...... and rightes in my worldlye interest and do....herby this my will to bee my
debtes payed and my will performed: written with myne owne hand in .... ..... dated and signed in
my chamber at Ugbrooke the for and twentieth daye of Aprill Anno Domin 1592 the for and thritith
yere of the raigne of oure Soveraigne Lady Elizabeth of England Quene defender of the faith xr

The three and twentieth daye of June Anno Domin a .... five ... .oos ol Elizabeth
Regine .... ......:these speeches were delivered by the testator Mrs Joane Tremayne unto John
Drake and Abigall his wife in the presence of John Snowe and Johane his wife, Peter Adam,
Dorothie Prowse viz: she the said testator saying. I have made my will and my executor which
shall...... which will Mr Beare hath overseene and no man els. My meaning ys that certeyne legacys
shalbe added onto that sayed will viz: I give to Symon Thomas and Hughe Clifforde syx poundes a
peece. I have by my will given to Dorothie Prowse twentie poundes which I will have to be made
thirtie poundes. I have given to Johane Snowe a bed performed whereon her husband did lye. To
Magdalen Kempthorne I give my wedding rynge. To Mr Webbe, Mr Woolcombe, Mr Rudgeway |
give all my lattyn bookes (except my dictionary). I will that they to whome I have given the lease of

Combestock Hall performe the ...... ofthe ...... made by John Drake to my .....unto Mr Willson and
Mr Wood for five yeres. To ..... ....... I givethe ....... of thirteene shillings & seven pence. To all my
servants in Ugbrooke House I give for shillings & sixe pence a peece. To the ...... boyes at Moreshill

I give tenne shillings a peece and to all the servants and ordinary workmen of that house twoe
shillings sixe pence a peece. To Mr Webbe I give Mr Tremaynes gowne. To my sister Clifford I give
my best grey.... Gowne. To Elizabeth Webbe my goddaughter I give fortie shillings.

PROBATUMFUIT TESTAMENTUM
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